
 
ROWAN COUNTY TOURISM BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 

 
Wednesday, November 20, 2024, Noon 

 
 
I. Call to Order                                                      Stephen Kidd 
                  
II. Approval of Meeting Minutes                             Stephen Kidd 
 
III. Financial Report               James Meacham 
  

A. Financial Report & Tourism Market Update                                  
 
IV. Tourism Program of Work Report  
  

A. Destination Services, Sales, and Marketing                                         
 

1. Digital Operations                    Sarah Michalec 
 

2. Trolley Program                    Tara Furr 
 

3. Sales, Marketing and Communications                                  Tara Furr 
 
B. Tourism Development and Infrastructure             Sarah Michalec & James Meacham 

          
1. Railwalk- 

i. Consider awarding construction and alternate A to lowest qualified bidder 
 

2. Wayfinding 
 

3. Agri-tourism development 
 

4. Marriott Towneplace Suites Project Update 
 

5. Gateway 
 
                      
VI. Additional Business 
  

• No December Meeting 
 
VII. Adjourn                                                        



1 

 

 
 

ROWAN COUNTY TOURISM 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

Wednesday, October 16, 2024, 12:00 pm 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 
Board Members Attending: Craig Pierce, Krista Sullivan, Stephen Kidd, Sada Troutman, Andy Maben, 
Annette Privette-Keller, Kimberly Morgan, Richard Reinholz, Therese Henderson, April Saylor 
 
Not Attending: Karen Alexander  
 
TDA Staff: James Meacham, Brooke Arrowood, Tara Furr, Sarah Michalec 
 
RCTDA Call to Order                                           
 
Stephen Kidd called RCTDA to order at 12:00pm.  
 
Approval of the Minutes 
 
Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion for approval of the September 2024 minutes. 
Second: Sada Troutman 
Motion: Approved 
 
Financial Report & Tourism Market Update 
 
Meacham distributed fraud questionnaires to 2023-24 RCTDA Board members to complete and return 
to Eddie Carrick, CPA for the June 30, 2024 fiscal year audit being completed this week.  
 
Meacham reported occupancy tax revenues as of 09-30-2024 for fiscal year 2024-25 on an accrual 
basis equaled $387,451 and are 15% ahead of budget expectations. August 2024 occupancy taxes 
were 14.8% ahead of August 2023 and August 2024 occupancy taxes were the highest ever collected 
for the month of August and were 9.8% ahead of the previous high in 2022. September taxes are 
projected to be between 10% to 15% higher than September 2023. Year-to-date revenues on an 
accrual basis through September were $60,157 ahead of expenses. With total revenues equaling 
$480,222 against total expenses of $420,067. Meacham said that finances are extremely strong with 
the organization at the current time.  
 
Meacham reviewed the balance sheet and reported current assets equaled $609,016 and were $66,725 
higher than the month ending 8-31-24 due to an increase in revenues and occupancy tax receivables. 
Accounts Receivables equaled $255,200 which includes August 2024 and September 2024 outstanding 
occupancy tax revenues and cash on hand as of 9-30-24 equaled $353,816. Meacham noted that in the 
coming financial reports starting in November to March there might be some swings in revenue and 
expenses as the capital projects are being completed over the next several months. By the end of the 
fiscal year the funding will all even out. 
 
Meacham discussed the recent hurricane and the impact that has occurred in tourism in Western North 
Carolina as well as how displacement has impacted local Rowan County lodging demand and revenue.  
 



2 

 

Motion: Sada Troutman made the motion for approval of the financial as presented.  
Second: Craig Pierce 
Motion: Approved 
 
Tourism Program of Work  
 
Michalec reported that the email newsletter open rate for year to date was 33.66% with 5,000 subscribers. The 
year-to-date open rate jumped 4% in September. The October e-newsletter went out at the end of September 
with events and activities for fall in Rowan County. Also included were blogs featuring all our special fall events 
and a guide to this year’s OctoberTour. The website has been revised to reflect the fall season with stats year 
to date there are 349,700 page views and just under 153,000 users up significantly from last month. Michalec 
reports that organic sessions are up from 12,000 in August to 14,000 in the month of September. 
  
Michalec reported RIPE (the online package booking platform) continues to be an asset in booking packages 
quickly. Year to date through the RIPE platform, there are 366 packages, and 559 room nights booked just 
through that platform with revenue of just over $82,000. 
 
Michalec reported that across social media Facebook followers are up 14.5%, X is up 3.6%, Instagram is up 
21.6%, and Tik Tok is up 39.2%. The total social media following is up 15.6 %. Hot topics in the month of 
September online included the Rowan County Fair, the new Bank Food Hall in Kannapolis, and Lazy 5 Fall 
Festival. Michalec reported that currently staff is on pace to surpass the benchmarks for social media for this 
year. 
 
The top blog post in September was Kicking Off the Fall with Thomas. October blogs included a Fall Festival 
Guide, Guide for Wedding Guests, Family Friendly Halloween events, Haunted Trails, and a fall foliage guide.  
  
Michalec reviewed the activity for the various influencers for the month of September reporting that Emilee 
Stamper visited Fall Fun at the Farm at Patterson Farm, Magnolia Megan was not able to complete her  visit to 
the Waterworks Exhibit due to the hurricane but will visit later. Jenson Savannah attended Downtown Brewfest 
again this year and had a wonderful time. Jenna and House of Henson posted about the DOWT stay & play 
packages. There is a new business that specializes in luxury picnics that reached out to staff and the TDA 
partnered with the business and an influencer to create some great content around a luxury picnic that took 
place at the Village of Gold Hill Park.  House of Henson did an additional video for free on Patterson Farms. 
So, a great deal of good digital coverage through the influencers on local attractions and events. Jenna will 
attend the Balloon & Laser Show in November. Year to date influencer impact is at over 1.1 million views and 
just over 58,000 engagements. The total year to date digital impact is at 545,843 engagements and a reach of 
more than 2.7 million. 
 
Furr reports that the Trolleys are booked solid for the fall, November and December with year-to-date bookings 
of 128. Trolley bookings over the next 90 days of 55. Over the next 90 days, the trolleys are rented out for 
OctobeTour, Christmas Parades, the Polar Express and more. 
 
Furr reported 59 total paid marketing placements in September bringing the year-to-date total to 354. Furr 
reported 122 packages and 181 room nights for Day Out with Thomas and totals surpassed last year’s 
numbers. Furr reported that NCTM sold just over 17,000 tickets which is 10% less than what NCTM sold for 
2023. Bell Tower Brewfest ended with 3 packages and 4 room nights and OctoberTour ended with 5 packages 
and 7 room nights. Polar Express packages total 188 packages and 257 room nights and are running slightly 
behind where totals were this time last year. Some additional marketing has been put out with some 
influencers to try to move those numbers up. Furr reports year to date 436 packages and 621 room nights 
associated with those thus far. Packages in place for late fall include Balloon Glow, Patterson Farm Fun on the 
Farm, and the Visa Package. 
 



3 

 

Furr reported Arrowood has completed 19 event visits year to date and Furr has completed 31 partner visits.  
Arrowood attended Autumn Jubilee, Gold Hill Farm Festival, Gold Hill Founders Day, Busker’s Bash and Bell 
Tower Brewfest. PR engagements year to date were 17 and include press releases, media inquiries and media 
related communication.  
 
Furr reported that the Smoke-Out was highly attended with 317 room nights confirmed with that event. Furr 
says that after speaking with the hotels she believes there were additional rooms booked for the event by third 
party systems. Meacham reported $427,483 in economic impact for this event and the event will return Oct 4-7, 

2025. Furr reported the Balloon Glow and Laser Show at the Fairgrounds in its second year coming in 
November. NC Main Street and State Historic Preservation coming in mid-November and Cherry Treesort is 
hosting a micro wrestling event on November 3rd. Year to date assisted 9 groups and 1,038 room nights 
associated with those groups. 
 
Looking ahead, Furr states that staff are continuing to push all of the stay and play packages including the 
Balloon Glow and Laser Show, Fun on the Farm at Patterson Farm, and especially Polar Express. Staff will 
continue to focus on Agritourism, fall fun and events, and looking ahead at holiday marketing. Furr has been in  
communication with local municipalities and the TDA is sponsoring events with many of those municipalities 
during the fall and holiday season.  
 
Tourism Development 
 
Michalec reported that a great deal has happened this last month in wayfinding. Both contracts are moving 
along well. The gateway monument signs for each community have been set into production. The installation 
locations have been flagged and calls have been made to 811 about underground lines. Michalec said staff is 
waiting to hear that the signs are ready for install, which should be in late December or early January. 
The kickoff meeting for the remainder of the directional signage has taken place and Michalec reported she 
and Furr have been working on staking the location of each of the signs throughout the county for the last few 
weeks. Once those are marked, staff will verify the locations once again while waiting for the signs to be 
fabricated, which should take around 12 weeks. Staff will also be working on ironing out any last-minute 
paperwork related to encroachment agreements.  
 
Michalec reported that staff recently met with PGAV to review their proposal for their phased development 
approach for agri-tourism development at Patterson Farm. PGAV presented an in-depth draft of a master plan 
that includes additional attractions, food and beverage options, an events venue for weddings which could 
bring hotel nights. All of PGAV’s ideas will help to continue the upward trend and momentum that we are 
seeing at Patterson Farm and with Agritourism. 
 
Meacham reported that the bid opening for the RailWalk had to be pushed back to the 24th as the architect 
forgot to run the necessary local ad in the Salisbury Post. The opening will now be on October 24th. Meacham 
reported that he and Michalec met with Troutman and the City Manager about how this will tie in with the 
Salisbury Train Station and if the city would be interested in funding a revision in the sidewalk to tie in with 
RailWalk. Meacham reported that nice promotional signs will be installed at both ends of the RailWalk. 
Meacham gave a brief update on the Marriott Townplace Suites project which is bogged down a bit with the 
city relating to communication issues between the developer and the city. There is a plan review meeting 
occurring tomorrow that Meacham will be attending. Once the plans are approved by the city, the developer 
can then submit the plans to the county for their review.  
 
 
 
 



4 

 

Meacham gave an update on the Gateway building noting that the tenants typically meet quarterly to review 
the building finances, maintenance, and any other issues. Meacham said that Michalec and Trantham do a 
good job of managing the facility and accommodating all the building tenants.  
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1 pm. 
Respectfully submitted.  
Lesley Pullium 
SRCVB 













Rowan County Occupancy Tax Receipts Collected (GROSS)

MONTH FY20-21 FY21-22 %CHNG FY22-23 %CHNG FY23-24 %CHNG FY24-25 %CHNG

July 61,737.08          105,514.79        70.9% 120,021.34        12.1% 108,732.65        -9.4% 133,587.33        22.9%

August 66,399.96          99,851.17          50.4% 115,189.06        13.3% 110,177.63        -4.4% 126,464.65        14.8%

September 78,562.08          100,792.04        28.3% 119,443.37        15.6% 114,690.69        -4.1% 133,536.09        14.1%

Quarter Total 206,699.12       306,158.00       48.1% 354,653.77        13.7% 333,600.97        -6.3% 393,588.07       15.2%

October 76,794.51          115,324.55        50.2% 128,088.16        10.0% 141,296.02        10.3%  

November 60,357.00          102,438.16        69.7% 116,523.19        12.1% 109,684.96        -5.9%

December 64,749.41          95,874.73          48.1% 103,834.94        7.7% 95,959.89           -8.2%

Quarter Total 201,900.92       313,637.44       55.3% 348,446.29        10.0% 346,940.87        -0.4%

January 56,291.87          96,918.80          72.2% 115,064.17        15.8% 88,997.47           -22.7%

February 62,049.03          94,530.61          52.3% 108,890.30        13.2% 106,875.73        -1.9%

March 84,372.26         114,826.05       36.1% 125,056.96        8.2% 123,858.60        -1.0%

Quarter Total 202,713.16       306,275.46       51.1% 349,011.43        12.2% 319,731.80        -9.2%  

April 90,628.43          119,032.67        31.3% 125,347.11        5.0% 137,682.85        9.8%  

May 97,167.69          126,307.46        30.0% 125,953.79        -0.3% 144,974.27        15.1%

June 102,792.30        115,684.25        12.5% 109,364.77        -5.8% 132,031.99        17.2%

Quarter Total 290,588.42       361,024.38       24.2% 360,665.67        -0.1% 414,689.11        13.0%

  

Adjmts Penalities

   Penalities

Year Total 901,901.62$     1,287,095.28$  42.7% 1,412,777.16$  8.9% 1,414,962.75$  0.2%

   

 

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024

2024-2025




















	11.20.24 Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	Nov 2024 Tourism Board Mtg. Agenda.pdf
	Rowan Tourism Board Minutes October 2024_.pdf

	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (005).pdf
	11.20.24 Board Meeting Packet
	Copy of Occ Tax Report As of 9.30.24.pdf
	Railwalk Bid.pdf


